ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 12, 2015
8:03 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 63
“"An Act naming the state library, archives, and nuseum buil di ng
in Juneau. "

- MOVED CSSB 63(STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 4

"An  Act relating to financial di sclosures required of
| egislators, legislative directors, public menbers of the Select
Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics, and public officials.”

- MOVED SSSB 4 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO. 24

"An Act relating to the applicability of the Legislative Ethics
Act to legislative interns, legislative volunteers, consultants,
i ndependent contractors, sole proprietorships, and other |egal
entities."

- HEARD & HELD
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Conmi ssi oner, Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs
Col . Laurie Hunmel

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2015



SENATE BILL NO 62

"An Act relating to the regulation of marijuana, marijuana
testing, marijuana products, and narijuana accessories; relating
to the licensing of marijuana retailers, producers, processors,
bouti que producers, brokers, and honme growers; relating to
taxation of marijuana; and providing for an effective date.”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 63

SHORT TITLE: NAM NG STATE LI BRARY & MUSEUM
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) EGAN

02/ 27/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 27/ 15 (S) STA

03/ 12/ 15 (S) STA AT 8:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: SB 4

SHORT TITLE: FINL. DI SCLOSURE: LEG S AND PUB OFFI Cl ALS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) G ESSEL

01/ 21/ 15 (S PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 15 (S) STA, JUD

01/ 26/ 15 (S SPONSCOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRALS
01/ 26/ 15 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 05/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 05/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

03/ 12/ 15 (S) STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: SB 24

SHORT TITLE: LEGS. ETHI CS ACT: CONTRACTORS, | NTERNS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) GARDNER

01/ 21/ 15 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 05/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 05/ 15 (S Schedul ed but Not Heard

03/ 12/ 15 (S) STA AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR DENNI S EGAN
Al aska State Legislature

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 12, 2015



Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 63.

REPRESENTATI VE NEAL FOSTER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 63.

CATHRYN FOSTER, W dow

| at e Representative Richard Foster

Ri chl and, Washi ngt on

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 63.

Rl CHARD FOSTER

Son of the |ate Representative Richard Foster
Nonme, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co- Sponsor of SB 63.

LI NDA THI BODEAU, Director

D vision of Libraries, Archives, and Museumns

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented i nformati on on SB 63.

COLONEL LAURI E HUMVEL, Comm ssi oner-desi gnee

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs (DWA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to her
confirmation hearing.

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 4.

VI VI AN STI VER, Staff

Senat or Cathy G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expl ai ned changes in SB 4.

PAUL DAUPHI NAI' S, Executive Director

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 4.

KATH E WASSERMAN, Executive Director

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2015



Al aska Muni ci pal League
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 4.

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 24.

T.J. PRESLEY, Staff

Senator Berta Gardner

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nfornmati on on SB 24.

JERRY ANDERSON, Adm ni strator

Legislative Ethics Conmmittee

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nfornmati on on SB 24.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8: 03: 57 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:03 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, Huggins, and Chair Stoltze. Senator
W el echowski arrived shortly thereafter.

SB 63- NAM NG STATE LI BRARY & MJUSEUM

8:04: 27 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi deration of SB 63.

SENATOR DENNI'S EGAN, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SB 63,
explained that the bill names the state library, archives, and
museum (SLAM) buil ding for Father Andrew P. Kashevaroff in honor
of his countless contributions to preserving Al aska history. The
SLAM wi || preserve the history of the people, the state, and the
territory of Al aska. Father Kashevaroff was a statewi de figure
of Aleut and Russian descent, who traveled all over the state.
He was married to an Al aska Native woman from Sitka.

He thanked Chair Stoltze and Senator Huggins for their proposal
to nane a reading room in SLAM after the |ate-Representative
Richard Foster. He said Richard spent a lot of tinme in the
archives reading history and it is fitting that the reading room
be named after him

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2015



8:06: 51 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS thanked those who worked on the anendnent
honoring Richard Foster, who was an institution in the
| egi slature. He said they | ooked for sonething that was fitting,
professional, and deserving to bear R chard Foster's nane - the
readi ng room

SENATOR HUGA NS noved to adopt Anendnent 1, |abeled 29-
LSO546\ A. 2, which would nanme the reading room in SLAM the
Representative Richard Foster Readi ng Room

AVENDVENT 1
OFFERED | N THE SENATE BY SENATORS HUGGE NS, STOLTZE
TGO SB 63
Page 1, line I, follow ng “Juneau”:
Insert “and the public reading room in that
bui | di ng”

Page 4, |ine5:

Del ete “Miuseum”

I nsert “Miuseum and Representative Richard Foster
Readi ng Room (a)”

Page 1, following |line 6:
I nsert a new subsection to read:
“(b) The public reading roomin the state library, archives, and
museum building in Juneau is named the Representative Richard
Fost er Readi ng Room”

CHAI R STOLTZE obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE NEAL FOSTER, Al aska State Legislature, testified
on SB 63. He recogni zed famly menbers on |ine.

CATHRYN FOSTER, Wdow of the |ate Representative Richard Foster,
t hanked the sponsor for honoring her husband in this way. She
said Richard |oved going to the archives room as an escape and
enj oyed readi ng about the history of Nome and the Bering Straits
Regi on.

8:10: 22 AM

RI CHARD FOSTER, Son of the |ate Representative Richard Foster,
testified on SB 63. He thanked everyone for their work on the
bill. He recalled his dad's interest in Alaska history and
shared what the honor neans to the famly.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER voi ced appreciation fromthe Foster famly
for the namng of the archives room after his dad, R chard
Foster. He shared that one of his dad's favorite things to do
was find old newspaper clippings about people's famlies and
make copies to give to their relatives. He also recalled stories
about how things used to be 100 years ago. His dad often would
be absent for a vote and would have to be called back to
sessi on.

CHAIR STOLTZE renoved his objection. There being no further
obj ections, Amendnment 1 was adopt ed.

He noted the arrival of Senator MGCuire.

He recognized the addition of Senators Coghill, M@&ire, and
W el echowski as sponsors to Anendnent 1.

SENATOR HUGG NS told a Richard Foster story about shooting.

SENATOR MCGUI RE stated her appreciation for Richard Foster. She
shared stories about him

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER recal l ed his dad's nicknane - "machi ne gun
Foster."

LI NDA THI BODEAU, Director, Division of Libraries, Archives, and
Museuns, Depar t ment of Education and Early Devel opnent,
testified on SB 63. She noted the SLAM project is on tinme and on
budget. She said she also has fond nenories of Representative
Foster and would be happy to post an appropriate biography
near by.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted two zero fiscal notes.
He cl osed public testinony.

8. 22:35 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS noved to report SB 63, as anended, from
committee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
notes. There being no objection, CSSB 63(STA) noved from
conmm ttee.

8:23:10 AM
At ease

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2015



Comm ssi oner, Departnent of MIlitary and Veterans Affairs
Col onel Laurie Hummel

8:25:16 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE announced a confirmation hearing for the
Comm ssioner of the Departnment of MIlitary and Veterans Affairs
( DWA) .

8:25: 37 AM

COLONEL LAURIE HUMVEL, Comm ssioner-designee, Departnent of
Mlitary & Veterans Affairs (DWA), presented information
related to her confirmation hearing. She provided information
about her background. She said she was in a mlitary famly and
spent tine in renote areas as a child. She always knew she
wanted to be a soldier. Her father encouraged her to go to
col l ege and becone a comm ssioned officer, so she attended West
Point. She related that she was naive and experienced pressures
and challenges. She said that there were 53 wonen in her
graduation class. She shared her experience in various nodes of
serving; mlitary intelligence officer, human resources, and
equal opportunity managenent.

8:32: 14 AM

COLONEL HUMMEL said in 1998 she nade a hard decision when
stationed in Alaska and was selected for battalion conmand in
the field army, but also as Professor of MIlitary Science for an
ROTC program at Oregon State University, and a tenured position
at the U S Mlitary Acadeny in the Departnent of Geography and
Envi ronnmental Engi neering. She opted to teach and nentor at the
mlitary acadeny. She went to the University of Colorado at
Boul der and earned a Ph.D. in geography where she researched
Mlitary Investnent in Alaska during the Cold War period. She
visited many install ations in Al aska, a I'ife-changi ng
opportunity. She concluded that she was an Al askan and she woul d
return to Al aska as her adopted hone.

She spoke of her time in Wst Point as an instructor. In the
summer of 2008 she becane a part of an interdisciplinary team
that did an external evaluation on the Human Terrain System She
explained that the Human Terrain System attenpts to |everage
soci al and environnental science expertise for the betternment of
sound decisions in the field. Teans of acadenm cs were enbedded
in brigade conbat teans in support of staff functions and
command decisions. A group |ooked at how well the program
wor ked.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2015



She related that she was able to volunteer on two occasions to
go to Afghanistan as an acadenm c advisory and as a senior nentor
to |eadership. She said she was on a team that enabled the
process needed to effect the entry of the first wonen cadets to
the National MIlitary Acadeny of Afghanistan in 2012.

8:39: 00 AM

COLONEL HUMVEL said she retired in 2012 after 30 years of active
duty service and noved back to Al aska. She said she has been a
Nat i onal Guard spouse since 2001, which has opened her eyes to
the unique conponents of the Guard. She said she also |earned
about the Reserve and Guard when serving abroad. She understood
that the Reserve and Guard sacrifice in nmany nore ways than
active duty soldiers. She shared some of the hardships they
experi enced.

She talked about watching the 297th Battlefield Surveillance
Bri gade activate and go to war for 15 nonths. She said she
realized the inportance of the Reserve and Guard in conbat areas
and to communities.

8:42:59 AM

COLONEL HUMMEL spoke of the difficulty of retiring. She shared
the great opportunity she has now to work as the Comm ssioner of
the Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs (DWA). She
descri bed sone of the services DWA provides. She thanked the
commttee for listening to her story.

8:45: 33 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked Ms. Hunmmel to describe her two rol es.

COLONEL HUMMEL expl ained as Comm ssioner she works on various
activities for the state in the DWA, such as honel and security,
energency nmanagenent, Veterans Affairs, and the Alaska Mlitary
Yout h Acadeny. She said she also works as the Commander of the
National CGuard, Naval MIlitia and the Alaska State Defense
Force. She said she is a state enployee and a soldier and paid
by both federal and state governnents. She added that sonetines
she wears both hats at once and has to be deliberate about
i ncome and human resour ces.

8:47: 27 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI thanked Ms. Hummel for her service. He said
she has an inpressive resune and Al aska is fortunate to have her
serve in the Guard. He inquired what she would |ike to convey to
t hose who have never served about those who have served.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2015



COLONEL HUMMEL replied that one-half of one percent of the U'S
population is in service. My nore Alaskans are directly
connected to service. She said she nmade her decision to join the
mlitary in 1978 during the Cold Wir. She stated she is
i mensely inpressed by the persons who have joined up to serve
during the tinme of war. She spoke of the sacrifices mlitary
soldiers encounter and said she honors those who serve. She
shared a story of a famly she net at West Point and her job in
funeral duty to hand a flag to a wdow. She described a quote
from a funeral card. She said she uses that famly's
sel fl essness as an inspiration of selflessness for herself.

8:55: 06 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how she separates her roles.

COLONEL HUMMEL expl ained that she retired as a colonel with a
federal rank, and now she is a Brigadier General in the Active
Reserves of the Alaska National GGuard, as appointnent by the
Governor in Alaska. She is going through the federal approva
process to recogni ze that sane rank

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about the nunber of stars allowed in
Al aska.

COLONEL HUMVEL thought there could be up to three stars all owed
in Alaska. The goal of the National CGuard Bureau is to have al
adjutants general be nmjor generals. There is no conmander
rel ati onship between the Alaska National GGuard and National
Guard Bureau, which advises and ©provides resources. She
expl ained wi thout being a viable partner, Alaska' s resourcing
will dimnish. She stressed the inportance of good working
relations and of the Alaska National Guard for defense,
especially in Ilight of Arctic strategy. Alaska has to be
rel evant and ready.

9:01: 20 AM
SENATOR HUGEA NS said he was a conbat soldier. He questioned her
ability to | ead at her age.

COLONEL HUMVEL said the notto of mlitary intelligence is
"always out front" and today everyone is out front. In terns of
physi cal readi ness she said she has sone injuries. She said went
through a nmedical evaluation process in order to be reinstated
and she is fit. She said soldiers |Iook for command presence and
she qualifies in spite of a VA disability. She said it is a 24/7
j ob and she has to take care of herself.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 12, 2015



SENATOR HUGA NS asked about nepotism and the investigation into
t he Guard.

COLONEL HUMMEL said there is a statute prohibiting nepotism in
state governnment. A Comm ssioner's close relative cannot be
enpl oyed in the sane departnent. She explained that her husband
was a Brigade Commander in the Alaska Arny National Guard, so
the plan is that he will stay a nmenber of the Arny National
Guard, but wll not work there and instead will work in the
National Guard Bureau J-3 section. Alaska' s nepotism laws are
nore stringent than in other states.

9:12: 37 AM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE said she is inpressed with M. Humel's
gualifications. She noted that gender is sonetinmes an issue. She
said she is proud of Ms. Hummel as a role nodel. She spoke of
the recent investigation into the Al aska National Guard and said
she is waiting for Judge Collins' report. She stressed the
inportance of norale in the National Guard and the perception of
the inability to report sexual harassnment. She requested to know
how Ms. Humel plans to turn the noral e around.

COLONEL HUMMEL said one of the problens that canme out of the
investigation was comand climte, such as a feeling of
power | essness to have a voice. She stressed that the first key
to change is hope. She opined that due to the broad changes at
the top, there is now a broad feeling of hope. The next
inportant step is to go beyond hope to begin "wal king the wal k"
by establishing doctrine-based processes that are known,
del i berate, repeatable, and relatively transparent. She provided
an exanple of jockeying and politicking for getting jobs, rather
t han advancenent based on qualifications. There is now a process
to gather information about potential candidates and their
qualifications and includes input from other |eaders. She
concluded that it could be nade nore deliberate by advertising
what wll be discussed regarding positions. She said that
predictability combi ned W th a standard process and
representation of |eadership should dispel the perception of
"cl ubi ness" or "boys' club". Mst people in the organization are
ready for that change; those who are not need to exit. There
also needs to be ways to recognize good performances and
i ncrease the esprit de corps.

9:24: 07 AM

SENATOR MCQUI RE asked about prevention and response prograns on
the i ssue of sexual harassnent and sexual assault.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 12, 2015



COLONEL HUMMEL recognized the work of Brigadier General M ke
Bridges who led the way during the investigation. She listed the
findings of fault: sexual assault, equal opportunity and equal
enpl oyment opportunity, law enforcenment, mlitary justice, and
command climate, as well as fraud, which was addressed by an
audit. The Guard initiated an inplenmentation planning team They
created a robust training programto educate, assess, and assi st
with sexual assault prevention and response. They devised a
"conmmander on the spot assessnent” for evaluating the reporting
of sexual abuse and assault. Corrections were nmade to the
reporting chain of the Sexual Assault Prevention and Response
Coordi nator (SARC) who is now in Colonel Humrel's office. There
is a special victims counselor, an attorney who wll advise
victimse of sexual assault. There is a full-tinme state equal
enpl oyment manager.

She continued to say that the Guard has done a thorough re-
training of equal opportunity personnel who can now train
others. There is now a full-time provost marshal who is an
Anchorage police officer and an active duty Guard nenber. There
is an Adverse Action Blotter Report to mnmnage and inprove
transparency on corrective actions and to build norale. There is
an i ncreased focus on ment or shi p progr ams to hel p
prof essionalize Guard rel ationships. Also, there is an inproved
process for officer and enlisted assignnents and pronotions so
that it is fair and deliberate and w thout politicking. She gave
full credit to General Bridges for these inprovenents.

9:34:22 AM

COLONEL HUMVEL said she will focus on comunication with the
troops to find out their needs. She pointed out that commanders
need better information in their training prograns and courses.
Staff support should make life easier for commanders to receive
excel l ent training.

9:35:41 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL noted entry into the Guard is voluntary and has
a variety of mssions. He asked what is working well and what
can be inproved.

COLONEL HUMVEL spoke to neaningful mssions in the Air Nationa
Guard first. She said their federally enacted mssions, which
are nore than in any other state, are naturally neaningful.
There are resources available, the mssions are relevant, and
airmen are notivated. The Arny National Guard is nore of a
chal l enge because it does not have federal mssions and their
training is for things that my or my not happen, such as

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2015



energency preparedness and conbat skills. A small, full-tinme
force is authorized to engender the conditions for the regular
soldiers to cone to training on their weekends and 15 days of
active duty training. She said in her estimation, too nmuch tine
is spent on "make work projects"” that do not go to the core for
preparedness for soldiers. She opined that inprovenents need to
be made in neani ngful training.

9:40: 13 AM
SENATOR COGHILL asked about Ilessons |learned from previous
depl oynents that would | ead back to basics.

COLONEL HUMVEL replied that they learned that taking care of
famly is a basic need. Also, soldiers need to have ful
confidence in the conpetence of their |eadership, so the
pr of essi onal education training of |eadership is inportant.

9:43: 03 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked about the Kodi ak Launch Project.

COLONEL HUMVEL said she would not speak for GCeneral Canpbell.
She related that there is a unique new opportunity to |aunch a
satellite famly. People are paying nore attention to the Arctic
where there wll be nore need than ever for geographic
information. She opined there are good things ahead for the
l aunch facility.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if there is a future for Al aska State
Def ense Force (ASDF).

COLONEL HUMMEL hoped so, however, she said that National Guard
Regul ation 10-4 has enascul ated ASDF and no federal funds are
available for it. The departnment may ask for state noney for
ASDF training. Al states that have a state defense force are
banning together to form a caucus to neet with Congressional
del egations to state their case.

CHAI R STOLTZE appreciated that effort.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked about declining recruitment and retention in
rural Al aska.

9:47:16 AM

COLONEL HUMVEL spoke of the value of all the networks in rural
areas. She said the Governor is invested in renewing the Guard
in rural areas. She pointed out that she has put together a
Commander's Action Goup and the Comm ssioner's Task Force to

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2015



research state travel initiatives and the relationship between
the Guard and rural areas.

She said she is addressing increasing recruiting and retention
in rural areas. She proposed to bring back a National Guard
counter-drug program - drug demand reduction. It consists of
federal resourcing to help educate and reduce drug use in the
force. Currently, there is no counter-drug program in the
National Guard. She said it is a learning process to get the
funding back. Also, there is a need for nedical waivers for
rural recruits due to the common problem of hearing |oss. There
is also a need for educational waivers in rural areas. She said
she needs to petition the federal governnent to nmake anendnents
to the joint travel regulation in order to allow rural soldiers
to travel to drill centers. She said she also needs to find ways
for professional mlitary education and advanced civilian
education for rural soldiers so they can raise their rank. She
stressed the inportance of making it known in Washington that
Alaska is different. She opined that Al aska needs to think
beyond the National Guard when it conmes to rural engagenent and
| everage other sections of DWA to enable inprovenents in
recruiting and retention in rural areas.

9:53: 30 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE t hanked Col onel Hummel .

[ The nane Col onel Laurie Hummel for Comm ssioner of the
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs was forwarded to the

full legislature sitting in joint session for a vote.]
9:53: 58 AM
At ease

SB 4-FINL. DI SCLOSURE: LEG S AND PUB COFFI Cl ALS

9:55:21 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of SB 4.

SENATOR CATHY d ESSEL, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SB
4, explained that the bill changes the filing date for the
Annual Public Oficial Financial Disclosure required by the
Al aska Public Ofices Comm ssion (APOC) from March 15th of each
year to May 15th of each year. It affects all citizens serving
on certain boards and comm ssions, nunicipal officers, and
public officials such as l|egislators. Sone nmunicipalities have
opted out of this disclosure date.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 12, 2015



She pointed out that the required financial docunents nust be
accurate and are required by the IRS. Many of those who nust
file owm their own businesses and do not have their financia
information ready by March 15. She referred to a docunent in
menbers' packets entitled "APOC Civil Assessnents"” that lists
possi bl e assessed penalties for inaccurate filings. She noted
letters of support for the bill.

9:58:40 AM

She said SB 4 does not change what wll be disclosed, it only
of fers an opportunity to ensure 100 per cent accurate
di scl osures.

VIVIAN STIVER, Staff, Senator Cathy G essel, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, explained changes in the bill. It changes the date
to May 15 and lists who is required to file.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked why it was witten as March 15 originally.

M5. STIVER understood that the date was chosen because it was
during the legislative session and a financial disclosure is
requi red. She pointed out that legislators nust file a financial
di scl osure when they run for state office and, if elected, or if
a person is appointed to a conm ssion or board, they nust file
again within 30 days. The requirenent to file was to give voters
a chance to see a candidate's financial interests.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if both he and his wife have to file by
March 15.

M5. STRI VER sai d yes.
SENATOR HUGA NS asked where the infornmation is stored.

M5. STRIVER said it is stored on line. She did not know if the
public was aware of those docunents.

SENATOR HUGGA NS recalled issues in the past in the |egislature
and knee-jerk reactions to them He preferred a date based on
the people, not the legislature. He said many may want to run
for office, but don't want to show their financial interests. He
spoke in support of the bill.

10: 04: 35 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2015



CHAIR STOLTZE related that the change was made to March 15 in
1998, as an anendnent. The original date was February 15 and
coi ncided wth APCC di scl osure deadl i nes.

PAUL DAUPHI NAI'S, Executive Director, Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion, offered to answer questions related to SB 4.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked for APOC s opinion of the bill.

MR. DAUPHINAIS said APOC is against changing the date for
reasons of transparency, but would enforce the deadline as the
| egi sl ature sees fit.

10: 07: 11 AM

KATH E WASSERMAN, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal League,
testified in support of SB 4. She said the change wll help
attract people to run for offices.

CHAI R STOLTZE cl osed public testinony.

10: 08: 37 AM
SENATOR HUGAE NS asked M. Dauphi nais about his commrent regarding
t ransparency.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS clarified that when APOC took its position on the
bill they were concerned about the Ilegislature and the
possibility of a legislator running for office, submtting a
financial disclosure, and then potentially signing business
contracts, and not having to file a disclosure statenment until
after the session was over and voting on issues was in the past.

SENATOR HUGE NS noted that before legislators vote they nust
declare a conflict of interest.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS said that provision is under the Legislative
Et hi cs Act, not APCC.

SENATOR HUGGE NS said it is the same thing.

MR. DAUPHI NAI S had no response.

SENATOR HUGEA NS said he is not trying to get special
consideration for legislators and is thinking nore about other

peopl e who are required to file.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked the sponsor if she has considered separating
| egi sl ators out.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- March 12, 2015



10:12: 10 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL nmaintained that legislators face the sane
accuracy issues and are subject to the sane fines.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted a zero fiscal note.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he is concerned with pushing the date
back for | egi slators because the public wants to see
| egi sl ators' financial disclosures. He encouraged separating out
| egi sl ators, even though it is sonetines a challenge to get the
paperwork done. Candidates have to fill out disclosures. A
better policy is to keep the date where it is.

CHAI R STOLTZE al so had concerns, but wanted to nove the bill. He
maintained it was a straightforward change and he supports
nmoving the bill out of commttee.

SENATOR COGHILL said the difference between |egislators and
others is that there is a higher level of scrutiny and
accountably required of legislators. He said he does not mnd
di scl osing his finances and supports the change of dates.

10: 18: 31 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE said he does not have conflicts to disclose.

SENATOR COGHI LL noved to report SSSB 4 from conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recommendations and attached zero fiscal note. There
bei ng no objection, the notion carri ed.

10: 19: 09 AM
At ease

SB 24-LEG S. ETH CS ACT: CONTRACTORS, | NTERNS

10: 21: 13 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE announced the consi derati on of SB 24.

SENATOR BERTA GARDNER, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SB
24, explained the bill is a "clean up bill" and is at the
request of the Legislative Ethics Ofice. About a year ago the
outgoing admnistrator of Legislative Ethics discovered a
statute that had not been enforced and deenmed it needed sone
changes.

T.J. PRESLEY, St af f, Senator Berta Gardner, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, provided information on SB 24. Through a routine

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- March 12, 2015



advi sory opinion process, the Legislative Ethics Adm nistrator
di scovered that independent contractors and consultants were
considered legislative enployees in statute and were subject to
the ethics code. The statute said that all the requirenments of
| egislative enployees nust be Jlevied on the independent
contractors and consultants. He used West Law Dictionary as an
exanple of a contractor and said it is not practical or feasible
to ask such a contractor or a corporation to fill out the
requi red paperwork.

He related that in 2012 interns and volunteers were given their
own place in the Ethics Act and now legislation is needed to fix
the problem of the contractors and consultants. The Legislative
Ethics Committee established a subconmttee with Senator Gardner
and Representative MIlet to establish legislation that would
fix the problem

10: 25: 12 AM

MR. PRESLEY concluded that they cane up with a solution that
included a focus on conflicts of interest and unethical conduct.
He referred to recommendat i ons by Legi sl ative Et hi cs
subconm ttee followed when witing SB 24. The bill puts
i ndependent contractors and consultants into their own category
in the Ethics Act, with reasonabl e, enforceable requirenents.

10: 26: 50 AM

JERRY ANDERSON, Administrator, Legislative Ethics Commttee,
provided information on SB 24. He said the bill is the product
of 14 nonths of neetings. He noted the subcommittee did
extensive work on the bill. He said the bill is inportant to

delineate the exact sections of the Ethics Act that apply to
contractors. Contractors are not subject to the training
requirenments. It is an inportant bill.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked for the Ethics Commttee's opinion of the
bill.

MR. ANDERSON said the Ethics Committee supports the bill.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted the legislature hires a lot of
consultants. He voiced concern about a consultant who is a
client of the oil industry.

MR. PRESLEY replied that there is contract |anguage in place
regarding unethical conduct. There is an expectation of no
conflict of interest in contract matters. However, enforcenent
i s anot her i ssue.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 12, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI sunmari zed that the change SB 24 provides
is that contractors would not have to file a financia
di scl osure form

MR. PRESLEY referred to challenges other states have had when
dealing with ethics and subcontractors. He questioned the
problems wth determning if contractors are |legislature
enpl oyees. The Ethic Statutes list what provisions apply to
i ndependent contractors and consul tants.

10: 33: 47 AM

SENATOR GARDNER pointed out that this proposal is not endorsed
by the Ethics Commttee as a whole, but by the adm nistrator and
the out-going adm nistrator, by a public nenber who is an ethics
attorney, and by the chair.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked for something in witing.

SENATOR GARDNER said the Ethics Commttee did request the
| egi slation, but did not take a vote to endorse it.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked for the process in witing.

10: 35: 03 AM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE noted the matrix of other states and she read
from Connecticut's: "For nost purposes a consultant is neither a
public nor state official and therefore not subject to the State

Ethics Act." She said another provision applies to contractors
and consultants and prohibits the ~consultant's wuse of
confidenti al i nformati on, the acceptance of ot her state

contracts which would inpair their judgenent, or the acceptance
or giving of anything of value that influences a consultant's
actions. She said she liked that statenent and saw it as getting
to the core of the issue.

She voi ced concern about good people not applying for positions
because they don't want to deal with all the filing
requi renents. She al so had concerns about a consultant's fear of
political ramfications from ethics conplaints. She gave an
exanple of an LB&A chair who mght hire an oil and gas
consultant who is targeted wth an ethics conplaint by
di ssati sfied opposition.

10: 37: 59 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS said he understands the need for ethics
conmttees, but they don't make dishonest people honest. He

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 12, 2015



opined it was not the oil and gas industry that had the greatest
conflicts of interest, but workers conpensation consultants. He
recomended hiring consultants that are honest.

10:40: 11 AM

SENATOR GARDNER summarized that currently contracts and
consultants are subject to the entire ethics code and the bill
tries to keep that which is neaningful and workable and get rid
of what does not work. She concluded, "There is a place that
protects our interest and allows us to nove forward in a
meani ngf ul way w thout creating nountains of data."

CHAI R STOLTZE held SB 24 in commttee.

10: 41: 32 AM

There being nothing further to cone before the conmttee, Chair
Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing Commttee at
10:41 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- March 12, 2015



